
 

 

 
CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Date: Thursday 18th November, 2021 
Time: 1.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual 

Please note this is a virtual meeting.  

The meeting will be livestreamed via 
the Council’s YouTube channel at 
Middlesbrough Council - YouTube 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 
 

  

3.   Minutes - Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel - 21 
October 2021 
 
 

 3 - 8 

4.   Middlesbrough Community Learning Employability- update 
 
In 2019, the Panel undertook a review into Middlesbrough 
Community Learning Employability. Claire Kemp, Head of 
Community Learning and Employability will be in attendance 
to provide a brief overview of the service; changes; provide an 
update on the panel’s recommendations and provide good 
news stories from the Employability Initiatives. 
 
 

 9 - 28 

5.   Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel- Future meetings 
 
The Democratic Services Officer will discuss with the Panel 
the work programme for future meetings.  
 
 

  

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesbroughcouncil


 

6.   Chair's OSB Update 
 
 

  

7.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may 
be considered. 
 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Wednesday 10 November 2021 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors C McIntyre (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, S Dean, C Dodds, 
L Lewis, L Mason, D McCabe and J Rostron  
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Susie Blood, (01642) 729645, Susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel 21 October 2021 
 

 
 

CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
A meeting of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel was held on Thursday 21 October 2021. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors C McIntyre (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), S Dean, L Lewis, L Mason, 
D McCabe and J Rostron 
 

 
PRESENT BY 
INVITATION: 
 
ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

 

 
OFFICERS: S Blood, G Field, M Walker, C Breheny and D Metcalfe 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

Councillors R Arundale and C Dodds 

 
21/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest received at this point in the meeting.  

 
21/7 MINUTES- CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES- 21 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 The minutes from the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel held on 21 September 2021 

were submitted and approved as a true record. 
 

21/4 TOUGH ENOUGH? ENFORCEMENT IN MIDDLESBROUGH AND ITS IMPACT ON CRIME 
AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR : PARTNERSHIP WORKING 
 

 The Chair welcomed the Head of Stronger Communities and the Operational Community 
Safety Manager to the meeting to provide information in relation to the Panel’s review on 
Tough Enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact on crime and anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
The panel had requested officers to attend to provide information in relation to the first terms 
of reference of the review: 

To examine the powers set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and how this has shaped 
Middlesbrough’s partnership working to tackle crime and anti –social behaviour in the Town. 

 
The Head of Stronger Communities provided a presentation on the following: 
- Middlesbrough’s community safety team (6 aspects to the team) 
 

• Neighbourhood Safety Wardens- 43 wardens who deal with a whole host of things, 
including for example; support vulnerable people i.e. refer to and link them to 
specialist support services such as Homeless, Substance Misuse, Debt Management, 
Domestic Abuse, Routs to Employment/Work, Health services; Support victims of 
crime and antisocial behavior; Enforce parking contraventions Parking Fines; Issue 
Fixed Penalty Notices for littering /dog fouling ; Enforce PSPO in TS1;Carry Naloxone 
injections and use them to save lives; wardens are trained in first aid and basic life 
support (they can also administer CPR) and gather intelligence and information which 
is shared with Police and other key partners. 

 
• Neighbourhood Safety Wardens (Environmental)- x 7 and Environmental 

Operatives x 5 (Flying Squad) . The Panel heard that the flying Squad were a newly 
formed Team developed on 1 March 2021 who identify and search through fly tipping, 
collect and remove all fly tipping from the particular site.  
 
The Neighbourhood Safety Wardens further Enforce Fly Tipping, via fines and if 
necessary through the courts ; deal with stray dogs, deal with abandoned vehicles 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



21 October 2021 

 

and are trained to respond to wardens activities already mentioned. 
 
The Operations Community Safety Manager further provided the panel with examples 
of best practice from the Team in relation to fly tipping. Since the introduction of the 
Team there have been positive results across the Town.  
 

• Neighbourhood Safety Officers – 7 officers who deal with issues that require a 
multi-agency approach, who work directly with elected members and try and solve 
problems to community issues. These can be varied depending on the issue.  

 
The officers Utilise a range of legal and non-legal measures to resolve antisocial 
behaviour, reduce crime   and the fear of crime and bring respite to victims of crime 
and antisocial behaviour 

 
The Team Investigate complaints of nuisance, antisocial behaviour and hate crime, 
working across all housing tenures, using advisory, counselling, negotiating / 
persuasive skills to convince others to take particular courses of action, where 
appropriate, this may result in for example, an anti-social behaviour contract 

 
The Head of Stronger communities further outlined that where all other avenues fail, 
the officers will gather a portfolio of evidence and work with key stakeholders to 
produce a prosecution pack for House Closure; Civil Injunction, or Criminal Behaviour 
Order against persistent and unchanging offenders.  

 
The panel were additionally presented with a slide which provided examples of where 
civil injunctions and house closures had been carried out to deal with persistent 
offenders in the Town. 
 
 
The Head of Service advised that as a team, there were certain tools and powers 
which they hold, these include for example: 
 

 Police accreditation- awarded in 2019- delegated to the Chief Constable to 
officers within the team. This gives the officers power to ask individuals for 
their name and address and if they fail to do so this is a criminal offence. Low 
level anti-social behaviour 

 Public Space protection order – TS1 area 

 Closure orders 

 Civil injunctions 

 Acceptable behaviour campaign (ABC)- a really useful tool which is affective 
to deal with certain individuals 

 Environmental powers 

 Parking enforcement 

 Power of persuasion  

 Partnership working – a key tool to our work. The team have daily briefings 
with the police/ Selective landlord licensing team/ community safety and the 
housing team to discuss key offenders and issues. Active intelligence 
mapping (AIM) which takes place every 3 weeks which analyse data and 
creates action plans to tackle hot spots and there is also the community 
safety partnership (statutory body) 

 
The Operations Community Safety Manager provided the Panel with Activity data since 1 April 
2021 
 

Total number of service requests dealt with by 
the service April 2021-20/10/2021 

13872 

CCTV total number of cameras in the local 
authority network 

400+ and more installs planned 
- Officers have actively installed cctv 

across the town and there are further 
plans to install more and improve the 
infrastructure within the control room. 

PSPO warning/positive interventions 244 

PSPO Fines 19 

Page 4



21 October 2021 

 

Environmental enforcement actions/ care files 
and fixed penalty notices combined 

145 (will increase significantly in the coming 
months as investigations are concluded) 

Closure orders 9 

Civil injunctions 7- the panel were provided with 3 examples of 
these these have been utilised.  

Lives saved using Naloxone 2 

 
Following the presentation of data, the Head of Stronger Communities provided the Panel with 
examples of support e.g. referrals to social workers , Temperature checks during Covid 19, 
wardens engage with LINX project, all of which have been excellent examples of support 
within the community. 
 
Further examples were provided in relation to closure orders and partnership and community 
working. Within the warden service, the panel were made aware of “Gentle George” who 
speaks 5 different languages and is a great asset to the team. The Head of Stronger 
Community Communities gave further examples of partnership working: amazing alleys (9 
already completed and a further 11 in progress) and bedding areas within community hubs. 
 
The Community Cohesion, Resilience and Migration Team additional add excellent 
community partnership to Middlesbrough, examples of which have been talent shows; 
supporting Refugee week and positive work with various communities to increase cultural 
awareness. The team work across the whole of Middlesbrough and at present are working 
with intergenerational work.  
 
The Head of Stronger Communities also provided a brief update in relation to the Community 
Safety partnership.  
 
The Panel have previously received update on this but were reminded that the Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP) was a statutory partnership made up of key ‘Responsible 
Authorities’ who have equal responsibility for reducing crime and antisocial behaviour under 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (As amended by the Antisocial Behaviour Act 2014 and the 
Policing and Crime Act 2017) . 
 
The responsible authorities are: 

• Police 
• Local Authority  
• Fire and Rescue Authority  
•  

These agencies work in collaboration with other statutory and non-statutory organisations as 
well as voluntary services and local people.  
 
The CSP produces a Strategic Intelligence Assessment and a Community Safety Plan every 2 
years and is up for review in 2022. 
 
The CSP is required to produce a Community Safety Plan, detailing how it intends to tackle 
crime and disorder and develop strategies to tackle short, medium and long term priorities.  
Middlesbrough’s latest Community Safety Plan will run until the end of March 2022 and the 
priorities were: The priorities and objectives for each objective were discussed. 
 
Priority 1- Perceptions and feeling Safe (e.g. Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour) 
Priority 2-Tacking the root causes (e.g. tacking adverse experiences)   
Priority 3- Locality working, including the Town Centre (e.g. working with our communities) 
 
The Head of Stronger Communities further advised that there was a 23 page delivery plan 
which looks at the objectives; these are RAG rated and ensure each objective is on target and 
if failing, actions will be put in place. 
 
In terms of the success stories from the Community Safety Partnership, the panel were 
provided with 2 examples: 
 
Example 1: 
 

Pallister Park and Norfolk shops were targeted by groups of youths throwing missiles 
and causing harassment, alarm and distress to shoppers. Through multiagency 

Page 5



21 October 2021 

 

working partners raised £8K to purchase, erect and monitor a rapid deployment 
camera, partners met on a weekly basis and addressed individuals causing the 
nuisance and feedback to residents on a weekly basis ensuring they were kept inform 
of all the work that was being done. 

 
Example 2: 
 

Thirteen Group raised an issue with an increase in empty properties in Eden Road 
area of Grove Hill, although police, MBC and Thirteen Group were not receiving any 
complaints from residents. We worked closely with residents gaining their trust and 
supporting them to report drug dealing and intimidation by 2 households that were 
dealt with. 

 
 
Partnership working: 

 Town Centre Team – Funding from Tees Valley combined Authority 
(TVCA). Increased Warden team, funded 2x Police Officers  and work 
with Town Centre businesses 

 Introduced a Public Space Protection Order in TS1 area  

 Gained Police Accreditation from the Chief Constable of Cleveland Police 
(Wardens) 

 COVID Marshal – Wardens, Park Rangers and library/Community Hub 
staff 

 Part of the Locality Working Model 

 Working closely with Selective Landlord Licensing   

 Work with Schools and community groups to raise awareness, improve 
crime, antisocial behavior, environmental crime and community cohesion  

 
Following the presentation, members made a number of questions: 

1. Whether locality working and selective landlord licensing would be extended? In 
response, the Head of Stronger Communities advised that Selective Landlord 
Licensing now sat within community safety and they had recently redesigned North 
Ormesby. In terms of Locality working, fantastic progress had been made, however 
there were no plans as yet to extend into further areas, however once an evaluation of 
the pilot areas had been completed, and a report would be submitted to Executive 
(within the next 6 months), and recommendations would be made to potentially roll 
out across Middlesbrough.  

2. Has the pandemic affected the performance indicators of locality working? The 
Director of Environment and Communities outlined that although Covid has had some 
delay on locality working, the Council was on track with performance. 

3. In terms of the Community Safety Team- a panel member queried that there were 43 
officers, but how many were on shift at many one time. In response, the Board were 
advised that taking into account leave, sickness, there was 21-22 wardens on duty out 
of the 43 (Community safety wardens) and the Environmental wardens are on duty 
Monday-Friday (team of 7) so combined was 29 officers on shift. Shifts were set on 
early and late shifts. In terms of calls for anti-social behavior, the Panel were advised 
that calls drop off between 8pm and 10pm, however the team were constantly 
reviewing data to establish how many officers were required. These are also 
discussed at the daily meetings and AIM meetings.  

4. Alley makeovers – a Panel member asked for the names of the alleys to be circulated 
to the panel.  

5. Wardens- a Panel Member outlined that they were led to believe that a warden would 
be allocated to each ward and queried why this was not the case. In response, the 
Head of Stronger Communities advised that there were Neighbouthood teams for 
North, East, South and West Middlesbrough, however there was not a warden 
dedicated to a specific ward. Intelligence was gathered through food patrols; CCTV 
and drive throughs, however the Head of Service advised that if members were 
concerned  

6. Flying squad- information to be provided to the Panel regarding complaints and issues 
dealt with.  

7. CCTV- members queried whether any of the CCTV were out of order. In response, 
the officers advised that a number in Hemlington were out of action, however no 
CCTV were out of order. Officers also advised that Members were welcome to visit 
the control room to for a demonstration. There was smart technology in place to look 

Page 6



21 October 2021 

 

at patterns and officers monitor cameras 24/7 and the panel were interested to learn 
that there was a full time officer from Cleveland Police based in the surveillance 
centre who undertakes the police reviews and there have been a number of arrests 
and prosecutions.  

 
The officers were thanked for their presentation. 
 
AGREED: 
 

 That the presentation be noted 

 That the information be included within the development of the final report of the 
Panel in due course. 

 
21/5 CHAIR'S OSB UPDATE 

 
 The Chair provide a verbal update in respect to the topics discussed at the Overview and 

Scrutiny Board on 20 October 2021. 
 
AGREED- That the update be noted. 
 

21/6 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED. 
 

 No items. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 

Aims of the Investigation 
 

Page 2 

Background Information 
 

Page 2 

Terms of reference 
 

Page 4 

Findings 
 

Page 4 

Conclusions 
 

Page 18 

Recommendations 
 

Page 18 

Acknowledgements 
 

Page 19 

Background Papers Page 19 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FINAL REPORT OF THE CULTURE AND 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL- 
MIDDLESBROUGH COMMUNITY LEARNING -

EMPLOYABILITY 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

 
 
 
 

AIM OF THE INVESTIGATION 
 

1. The aim of the investigation was to ascertain what learning projects Middlesbrough 
Community Learning offers young people and adults to assist them to gain employment. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Middlesbrough Community Learning 
 

2. Middlesbrough Community Learning (MCL) is proud to provide high quality learning 
opportunities for people of all ages and abilities. As a focal point for the local community, they 
provide a wealth of learning opportunities and courses for adults and young people. 

 
3. In their recent Ofsted inspection (February 2016), Middlesbrough Community Learning was 

awarded a rate of ‘Good with outstanding features’. The service was referred to as having: 
 
"Outstanding Leadership and Management leads to many learners experiencing a 

life changing impact" 
 

 
4.  The service offers the following courses/programmes to the community: 

 

 Apprenticeships 

 Traineeships 

 Community Learning 

 Volunteering 

 English, Maths and ESOL 

 Routes to Work 

 Youth Employment Initiative (Choosing Pathways)  
 
 

5. In recent years, the panel has been increasingly aware of the amount of individuals 
unemployed within Middlesbrough and across the Tess Valley. While not the focus of this 
investigation, the roll out of Universal Credit (UC) may prove to have an impact into how MCL 
carries out its service.  
 

6. UC is designed so that a broader span of claimants are required to look for work than under 
jobseekers allowance. The Panel is unaware of the actual affect the roll out of Universal Credit 
will have on Middlesbrough residents, however they were keen to understand what the 
Council was doing to help combat unemployment across the town.   

 
7. The Tees Valley Combined Authority, Unemployed Claimant Count – September 2018, 

outlined that 16,820 were claiming jobseekers allowance and Universal Credit. The 
breakdown across the Tess Valley is shown below: 

 
It must be noted that as the unemployment rate numbers include those claiming 
Universal Credit, it may be creating artificial increases in numbers. Rates and 
numbers are calculated using the mid-2017 resident working age population (16-64) 

Page 10



3 

 

 

 

Monthly Claimant 
numbers 

September 
2017 

August 2018 September 2018 

Darlington 2,280 2,415 2,465 

Hartlepool 3,600 4,045 4,085 

Middlesbrough 4,040 3,820 3,820 

Redcar & Cleveland 2,920 2,610 2,620 

Stockton- on- Tees 3,790 3,760 3,835 

Tees Valley 16,630 16,650 16,820 

National 765,755 891,380 902,765 

Source: ONS,NOMIS, 16+ 
 

8. The panel were aware of Middlesbrough Community Learning, however with the above 
statistics in mind, the panel were keen to establish, what, if anything, Middlesbrough 
Community Learning service were offering to help young people and adults gain employment.  

 

Mayor’s Vision  

9. At the time the report was undertaken, the former Mayor’s Vision 2025- Fairer, Safer, 
Stronger, the Panel identified Middlesbrough Community Learning as addressing Fairer 
and the priority of Fair access to secure, well-paid jobs and meaningful training.  

10. From the outset, the panel noted the passion of officers within Middlesbrough Community 
Learning to deliver high quality courses to help individuals. It was apparent that 
Middlesbrough Community learning was not only a vital service, but have officers/ tutors 
who are friendly, approachable and offer courses which develop long lasting memories for 
learners in Middlesbrough. 

11. Middlesbrough Community Learning also fulfils goals with the former Mayor’s Social 

regeneration agenda by the following- Increasing employment levels; Increasing educational 

attainment (including skills and vocational); Improving health and wellbeing and Improving 

community life. 

Middlesbrough Community Learning- Setting the Scene and a change to learning 
 

12. The panel collected their evidence over a series of four meetings, which involved witnesses 
including officers from Middlesbrough Community Learning, learners and partner agencies. 

 
13. The panel first received evidence from Chris Kemp, Community Learning Manager who 

provided a background to community learning within Middlesbrough and providing brief 
information on the projects provided and the budget. The panel learned that there were two 
main training providers within the Town; Middlesbrough Community Learning and 
Middlesbrough College.  

 
14. The Community Learning Manager outlined that in 2011, the Government introduced a 

Strategy entitled 'New Chances, New Challenges', which was introduced to assist with the 
challenges faced within the economic climate. Learning and skills play a vital part in this role 
in securing economic growth and therefore the strategy introduced a greater emphasis on 
teaching skills for life within lifelong learning, rather than leisure learning, which had been 

Page 11



4 

 

previously offered. Skills for life are designed to ensure individuals have the basic skills to 
be ‘work ready’.  

 

15. With the ‘work ready’ aspect in mind, the panel were keen to explore what Middlesbrough 
Community Learning offer to assist with employability. Whilst the panel were aware of other 
training courses offered by the service, and by Middlesbrough College, for the purpose of 
this investigation the panel wished to examine the Council’s in house service. Specifically it 
wanted to focus on projects within the Adult Education Budget (AEB) to gain a sense of its 
achievements, weaknesses and put forward, where necessary, recommendations for 
improvement.  

 

16. The panel, therefore, agreed to focus the investigation on the Adult Education Budget 
projects, these being: 

 Adult Education Budget (Community Learning and skills )  

17. The panel also agreed to look at the following: 

 Youth Employment Initiative (YEI)  
 Routes to work  

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
18. Following on from the initial evidence gathering session, the terms of reference for the scrutiny 

panel’s investigation were as follows: 
 

Terms of reference 1: To investigate Middlesbrough’s Community Learning 
programmes and how they assist individuals getting into employment. 
 

Terms of reference 2: To consider how the different programmes are managed 

(funded) and how their objectives are achieved.  

 

Terms of Reference 3: To review the outcomes of the programmes e.g. with 

regard to the level of employment of learners following completion of courses. 

 

Terms of Reference 4: To examine how the programmes link in with wider 

organisations and businesses offering employment pathways across 

Middlesbrough. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
19.  From the evidence received, the Panel generated the following findings in respect to the 

terms of reference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



5 

 

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

20. The Adult Education Budget (AEB) currently stands at £1,563,132 which delivers two key 
themes:  Adult Skills and Community Learning. 

 

21. The Panel learned that the AEB was currently transitioning between the Education Skills 
Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Tees Valley Joint Authority (TVCA). The Community 
Learning Manager advised that the budget would be transferred to the TVCA in 2019. 
However, this would be phased and the service was expected to continue operating in its 
current state until 2020. 

 
22. The purpose of AEB aimed to engage adults and provide the skills and learning they need to 

equip them for work, an apprenticeship or other learning. It enabled more flexible, tailored 
programmes of learning, which may, or may not, require a qualification to help eligible 
learners engage in learning, build confidence, and/or enhance their wellbeing (ESFA funding 
rules 2018/19). 
 

23. Whilst the transition of the budget to the Tees Valley Combined Authority is not imminent, 
they have agreed some principles for the management and delivery of the Adult Education 
Budget, which are as follows:   
 

 Maximise funding to learner 
 Prioritise Tees Valley based delivery  
 Support appropriate, value for money sub-contracting  
 Progression – community learning to formal learning route ways  
 Outcome measurement-destination of learners  
 Quality provision  
 Linked to labour market demand 

   

24. The panel were also made aware the Common Inspection Framework had changed to 
delivering skills, and in turn the TVCA was focussed on outcomes, linking to how courses can 
help individuals seek employment. The purpose being to ensure individuals can gain a level 
of English to use within a work setting.  The change in focus had also impacted Middlesbrough 
Community Learnings outcomes, only 6% of learners went on to gain employment 3 years 
ago, and in 2017, there was 33% outcome. This percentage was likely to increase as the 
projects evolve and develop.  

 
The Panel complimented the service on the increased employment outcome, and were keen 
to explore the three projects. 
 
  

Adult Education Budget- Adult Skills 

25. The Panel firstly heard from Karen MacKintosh to provide an overview of the assistance the 
Adult Education Budget provides with getting individuals into work. Karen provided the panel 
with information relating to Adult skills. 
 

Page 13



6 

 

 
26. It was noted that the Adult Education Budget (AEB) was targeted at people aged 19 years 

plus.  
 

27. The purpose of AEB aimed to engage adults and provide the skills and learning they need to 
equip them for work, an apprenticeship or other learning. It enabled more flexible tailored 
programmes of learning to be made available, which may or may not require a qualification, 
to help eligible learners engage in learning, build confidence, and/or enhance their wellbeing 
(ESFA funding rules 2018/19). 

 
28. The panel learned that the Adult Education budget (Skills) funds an agreed list of eligible 

qualifications that move participants to a positive destination, work, further education or 
apprenticeships and there were two types of funding: 
 
Legal entitlement: 

 
• English and Maths for those who have not previously achieved a GCSE Grade A*-C or 
grade 4 or higher 
• First full level 2 qualifications (19-23 year olds 
• First full level 3 qualifications (19-23 year olds) 
• Learners earning less than £15,736.50 
• In addition to the above list a new entitlement for digital ICT training will come in force in 
the 2020. 
 
Local Flexibility: 
 

 Flexible, tailored, provision for adults, including qualifications and components of these 
and/or non-regulated learning, up to level 2. Depending on their circumstances, funding 
may be available to fund the course. 
 

29. As the panel were aware of changes to the Common Inspection Framework to deliver skills, 
and that the TVCA was focussed on outcomes, linking to how courses can help individuals 
seek employment, with the purpose of ensuring individuals could gain a level of English 
which they could survive within a work place.  
 
In terms of Middlesbrough Skills budget , it was broken down as follows: 

 English and Maths (29%) 

 ESOL (58%) 

 Work Readiness assessment (5%) 

 Night school (3%) 

 Supporting schools (2%)- in delivering courses identified by the school e.g basic maths 
 

30. The officer advised the panel that they have excellent partnership working especially with 
the job centre who will refer individuals as necessary.  
 
 
 
Learning journey- Focus on moving learning closer to employment 
 

31. The panel learnt of the learner’s journey : 
 

Step 1: Initial assessment: in terms of ESOL the centre would assess their level of English 

Page 14



7 

 

and what they require. Some individuals have no literacy, whilst others are educated to 
degree level. 
 
Step 2: Assessment:  learners go on a 2 week assessment, where the tutor will assess the 
learner’s holistic needs in relation to their career aspirations. The tutor will have mixed ESOL 
groups to mix with native speakers, this helped with social cohesion and broke down barriers. 
The sessions were also centred on the local area, so that learners have pride in where they 
are from. 
 
Step 3: Programme of Study: all learners have access to a personal advisor, there were 
qualification and none-qualification classes, which focus on employment and there were 
enriched activities. Intake on the courses was every 2 weeks, which was a request from the 
job centre. Low level classes had a session on employability every week. 
 
Step 4-Progression: there was a focus on moving learners closer into employment, be that 
either employment, further education or volunteering. The centre had strong links with James 
Cook hospital, MVDA and street wardens. 
 
After visiting the centre, the panel were extremely complimentary of the thorough service 
delivered by staff and the determination displayed by learners.  

 
 
Outcomes 
 

32. In terms of outcomes, from Adult skills in 2017/18 were as follows: 
 

 79.4% learners went into further Education 

 12.2% went into employment 

 0.5% went into voluntary Work 

 6.7% Other 

Case Studies from learners and comments 

Jason- was a gentleman in his mid 40s who had been unemployed for a while. Jason had 

low in confidence and his English was not very good, nor his CV. Jason wanted to 

volunteer at James Cook University Hospital. We supported him by paying his bus fares. 

Jason now is more confident and his change in attitude was so nice to see. Jason was 

now on the shortlist for prospects course. 

Unsil is refugee. He used to work in telecommunications and had some work experience 

with BT. The tutors were very impressed with him and supported his application to 

Teesside University. The University have advised that they will guarantee him an interview 

when he has got his qualification. 

“Normally I’d switch off but not in this class” 
 “It’s not boring and has lots of activities” 
“He (the teacher) builds my confidence and helps me understand things” 
“It’s nice to go out with new friends and learn about Middlesbrough it makes me feel 
better” 
“I can go to the doctor’s now without an interpreter” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 15



8 

 

 91.5% Achievement 
 

33. The outcomes were set to improve as more learners signed up to the courses. The panel 
stated their wish to have a further update on this in a years’ time. 

 
Community Learning 
 

34. Joanne Richards, Manager of the Community Learning programmes provided the panel with 
insight to the Community Learning and what was offered to assist individuals gain work skills 
and employment. 

  
35. The purpose of community learning was to develop the skills, confidence, motivation and 

resilience of adults (19 years or over) of different ages and background in order to: 
 

●  Progress towards formal learning or employment 
●  Improve their health and wellbeing, including mental health and 
●  Develop stronger communities 

 
36. Community learning was based across Middlesbrough within the Community Hubs, Libraries 

and schools and is priority driven, linking to Middlesbrough Council’s 2025 vision; Fairer, 
Safer, Stronger. Community learning was done with partnership with Middlesbrough Football 
Club Foundation, NUR fitness, SAVVY and the NHS. 
 

37. Courses provided include: 
 

 Family learning- positive parenting, fun with numbers (address the needs of parents 
within schools) 

 Confidence building 

 ICT- basic, intermediate and ECDL 

 Health and wellbeing e.g. SAVVY provide health and beauty but provide health and 
wellbeing training. 

 Employability course- Steps towards, a project whereby individuals gain 2 weeks 
experience in a skilled job e.g. housekeeping within a hotel. At the end of their 
experience, they are guaranteed an interview and success rate is high. 

 Healthy eating/ cooking on a budget – working towards the obesity strategy. 
 

38. In terms of the Community learners, in 2018, there had been 2,930 learners and the 
breakdown was as follows: 

 
Gender- female (61%), male (39%) 
Ethnicity- White British (63%)/ BAME (37%) 
Age- 19-24 (10%), 25-36 ( 31%), 37-48 (27%), 49- 60 (22%) and 61+ (10%), =it is noted that 
those 61+ tend to enrol on basic ICT skills. 

 
39. There was a 96% attendance, 95% success and 70% are from deprived communities. 

 
40. The panel learnt that each learner has an Individual learning plan (ILP) which outlined their 

outcomes they wish to achieve from the course. 
 

41. Of the learners: 
 

●  35% go onto further learning (most learners may have just left college, so this can 

Page 16



9 

 

often be their first step since finishing education. They may not have been able to go 
elsewhere so this provides them with the opportunities for their first step into training) 

●  24% go into employment, which can be linked from the Steps towards scheme 
●  4% go into volunteering, however there was a push to encourage more volunteering 

after the courses. 
●  20% not into employment, for example due to parental responsibilities 
●  17%, those are learners that due to circumstances do not go onto anything further e.g. 

mental health issues, lone parent. 
 
The wider picture- in the heart of the community 
 

42. As the panel are passionate about community engagement, they were keen to learn about 
the relationships with wider organisations and businesses, and whether they offer 
opportunities and employment pathways for learners.  

 
43. The officer provided the panel with two key examples: 

 
 Family learning- Abingdon and Ayresome primary schools 

 
Community learning were approached by Abingdon and Ayresome primary schools, who 
found a number of their parents spoke little English. Consequently, they had issues 
communicating with the school. For example, when they sent letters out to these parents 
they often didn’t get a response. Parents also didn’t have the confidence to talk to their 
child’s teacher about any issues. Due to the needs within the school, Middlesbrough 
Community Learning ran a basic ESOL course for parents. The success rate was 
incredible, as parents had increased confidence, their English improved, many went onto 
further training and some looked for work. School attainment and homework improved as 
there was more understanding from parents. 
 
A steps-towards course had also run in January within Abingdon primary school, as they 
had been struggling to recruit lunchtime supervisors. It was felt this would enable parents 
to gain employment within the school as well as gaining confidence and self-esteem. 
 
Similar partnerships have been run in other Middlesbrough schools and the feedback has 
been excellent: 
 
“ We would definitely recommend the partnership with other schools and organisations” 
(Ayresome Primary school) 
 
“We have worked with MCLS  for a number of years and have witnesses some great 
outcomes in terms of preparing parents for learning and to return to the labour market” 
(Corpus Christi Primary school). 
 
 

 Steps towards working in the NHS 
 

The panel were made aware of the excellent partnership working with a partner (NUR 
fitness) and the NHS. The rationale was to increase numbers of BME working within a 
support worker role. From the scheme, 26 ladies from the BME community were engaged 
in the project. Of those 26, 6 went into volunteering with the NHS and 1 went into paid 
employment. The scheme was also nominated for Tees Valley BME achievement award. 
 

Page 17



10 

 

“Once on the course I realised I had made the best decision of my life! “ 
“6 months ago I thought my life was over .....but now I feel life is just beginning.” 

Page 18



11 

 

 

Case Study- Lisa Fallows- Managing Director of Savvy Health, Hair and Beauty salon and training 

academy and Natalie, a learner and volunteer  

NB- Lisa and Natalie attended a panel meeting and provided evidence of the panel. 

 “ I left school when I was 16 years old, with no qualifications. I didn’t know what to do, and college just 
wasn’t for me, so I went to Middlesbrough Community Learning and got my English and Maths. Whilst I 
was there I knew there was a huge demand for hair and beauty. I have 6 children and know the strain 
being a Mam, wife, work and supporting others can be. I opened Savvy in North Ormesby, which is a 
deprived area and I share the same story as a lot of my learners. I did eventually go to College and 
University and I am now a qualified teacher, but I wouldn’t have done that without community learning as 
they gave me the confidence to do this. 
 
As I understand the strain go being a Mam, I try and help people in the community who need help. Our 
courses are flexible, so they can be done round the school run. Having parental responsibilities can be 
hard when you have to attend college 9-5. But our courses don’t just offer health and beauty, we also 
touch on health and wellbeing, because when you face barriers, you can sometimes feel isolated and 
your self -confidence goes low. 
Because of our flexible courses, we have excellent success rates and retention on courses- you’re not 
just a number, who are someone who we will offer support and advice. 
 
I like to share my story with my learners, because I came from nothing and now have my own business. 
We get a lot of learners approach us, through word of mouth, because we are based in the centre of the 
community but because we are unique. We encourage the learners to volunteer in the salon and our 
courses are hands on. We deliver the course in a working salon, where the learners are taught how to 
take bookings, do a consultation etc. We work with a number of partners so quite often the volunteering 
will lead to other things for our leaners and some have got jobs. But without community learning, this 
wouldn’t be possible, so I would like to thank you for helping me and supporting me”. 
 
“I also recently ran an awards ceremony for my learners and It was inspirational just listening to the 
stories of these woman”. 
 
This is Natalie, and she is an inspirational woman. Natalie approached me because of the networking we 
do in the community. I saw something in Natalie and through community learners, I was able to 
safeguard her due to personal issues. She now volunteers 3 times a week and she supports other 
volunteers who come into the salon privately and she is well liked and a huge success. Natalie is now 
writing a business plan to open her own business but Natalie asked to volunteer because she wanted 
hands on experience and wanted to be ‘work ready’. Natalie in on the road to her own business but 
community learning has changed her life and they have helped me as a business grow.” 
 
Natalie: 
 
“I went to Savvy, because college wasn’t for me. I’m 30 and I have 5 children. I couldn’t get to college 
because of transport and childcare but with Savvy it is in the community, I can walk there and I can 
juggle the kids. 
 
Before I went to Savvy it was really hard. The night before I approached Lisa, I was in a really dark place 
and I wanted to end my life, but something in me stopped me. I felt selfish and knew that my kids needed 
me and I somehow got the courage to go to Lisa. She took one look at me and said “are you alright?” 
and a year on I am now volunteering in the salon. 
 
Lisa listened to me and safeguarded me and she made me feel like I was something and not worthless. I 
think she is amazing and she is a role model. I know now that I was being selfish but my mental health 
was so low. I wouldn’t get out of bed, or do my hair or makeup. My Mam had to take the kids to school. I 
do still get down days but I am out of that way of thinking and now look forward to my days. 
 
I love working in Savvy and when I started my course we had to do role play of welcoming clients and 
doing bookings, to me this is the best way to learn”. 

Page 19



12 

 

 
 

44. From the evidence provided, the panel could see the huge benefit provided to the 
community through the Adult Education Budget, without the courses and opportunities 
provided, many individuals would not have basic English and not given the vital life 
opportunities, like Natalie from the case study, to improve their lives and mental wellbeing.  

 

Youth Employment Initiative (YEI)  

45. The panel also heard evidence from Terry Frank, Coordinator of the Youth Employment 
Initiative (YEI). The panel were made aware that the YEI was created by the European 
Commission in 2013, which was to target regions with a high youth unemployment rate. The 
initiative in the Tees Valley is called, Tees Valley Pathways Programme, and is part funded 
by the European Social Fund and supported under the Youth Employment Initiative. 
 

46. The aim of Tees Valley Pathways was to support young people across the Tees Valley aged 
15 to 29 years, who are unemployed and/ or not in education, employment or training 
(NEET). The initial programme was due to run until 31 July 2018, however the programme 
had been so successful that additional funding became available and the application to 
extend the programme until 31 July 2022 was approved. 

 
47. Hartlepool Borough Council were the Lead Accountable Body, with Middlesbrough being 

one of 22 partner providers. Any changes to the programme must be approved by 
Hartlepool Borough Council and changes or commitment to funding must be approved by 
the Contract officer. YEI was due to commence in October 2015, however due to a slight 
delay, it started in January 2016, with contractual arrangements completed in June 2016. 

 

48. Tees Valley Pathways was to offer personalised education, employment and enterprise 
opportunities alongside innovative activities and bespoke support. The panel were made 
aware that the area of delivery revolve around four outcomes: 

 Participants completing a supported intervention –  

 Participants receiving an offer of employment, education, apprenticeship or traineeship 
upon leaving  

 Participants in education/training, gaining a qualification, or in employment upon leaving  

 Participants in continued education, training programmes leading to a qualification, 
apprenticeship, traineeship, employment or self -employment six months after leaving. 
 

49. It was commented that bullet points 3 and 4 were critical to the programme and provided 
evidence of outcomes. The programme itself was very much outcome based, which 
received a lot of scrutiny, having 24 measures, audit and contract reviews and heavy 
paperwork based to show outcomes, e.g. if a participant gained employment for more than 6 
months, if no evidence was received from the employer, they cannot count this as an 
outcome. 

 
50. Tees Valley Pathways project for Middlesbrough was called Choosing Pathways. 

 

51. The panel heard that the programme provided the following to learners: 
 

Page 20



13 

 

 Employability and personal development  

 wrap around support from a learning advisor  

 Flexible, individualised induction and individual learning plan  

 3 week interactive 'Choices' programme, with 6 sessions around self-awareness, 
attitudes, responsibility, motivation and confidence.  

 aims to transform thinking and behaviour - take control, responsibility and ownership of 
consequences  

 Motivational approach with high expectations  

 6 months additional tracking and support following programme exit  

 financial support - e.g. with childcare, travel, clothes and equipment and incentives 
 

52. The panel praised the scheme and its extensive support to learners, as quite often it was felt 
that not having the 1:1 contact and motivational support can often lead to learners being 
disengaged. The YEI programme has a 'can do' approach rather than 'can't do' and this was 
demonstrated by number of participants on the programme.  In September 2018, there were 
477 participants of the programme, the target for 31 July 2022 was 830 and in terms of 6 
month sustainment of employment, participants were 142 (as of September 2018) and 
overall target for 31 July 2022 was 332. It was commented that the Choosing Pathways 
programme was more positive than the Tees Valley average. Currently there were 5 
members of staff with one vacancy. 

  
53. Members queried the success rate of the programme, of which the officer presented a key 

outputs and outcomes table. In terms of participants, as of September 2018, there were 477 
participants of the programme, the target for 31 July 2022 was 830 and in terms of 6 month 
sustainment of employment, participants were 142 (as of September 2018) and overall 
target for 31 July 2022 was 332. It was commented that the Choosing Pathways project was 
extremely popular in the Tees Valley. 

 

54. Individual Learning Plan (ILP) to identify any training needs for qualifications were also 
completed. This may be able to be delivered through Middlesbrough Community Learning 
(English and Maths and ESOL) or if not providers are contacted such as the STEM centre at 
Middlesbrough College who provide YEI with courses/ dates and times. It was discussed 
that there was no direct contact for course delivery within the College, however it may be 
beneficial to see if there was contact officer who YEI officers could go to direct. 

 

55. Satisfaction questionnaires completed by young people show the support for the 
programme: 

 
'Great help from advisors , they made me feel comfortable' 
'the whole programme helped me improve my mindset' 

 
56. The panel finally heard about some of the challenges faced towards Choosing Pathways: 

  

 Job Centre Plus- claimant characteristics/ type/ numbers - The contract value is heavily 
weighted towards unemployed participants (JSA claimants). However these numbers 
are low and form a small proportion of benefit claimants with the greater number being 
ESA claimants and these are classed as inactive not unemployed. Also as numbers 
reduce those left are increasingly harder to help.  

Page 21



14 

 

 Number of providers (initially 27) - these offer diversity but also means providers are 
competing for Job Centre Plus clients.  

 Young people on zero hour contracts - currently classed as working and as such 
ineligible for support through YEI. It will be interesting to see whether the introduction of 
Universal Credit has any impact on this.  

 Sustainable employment - this is the real challenge as many opportunities for young 
people are part time / temporary or zero hours contracts.  

 Exclusion of those already ‘on the system’- The timescale for the programme was now 
over 6 years in total. This means that any young person signed up to the programme 
(any of the providers) when 16/17/18 and perhaps not ready to fully engage would not 
be eligible to re-join at a later date when they are more ready to engage (say when 
20/21). We have already come across a small number of such cases and this may 
increase as we go forward. 
 

 
Routes to work 
 

57. The panel finally received information from Joanne Richards, Coordinator of the Routes to 
Work scheme and Barbara Smith in relation to a project Routes to Work. 

 
58. Routes to work was a pilot scheme introduced in October 2017, with £6m DWP funding 

matched by £1.5 million from the combined Authority. The three year pilot scheme was to 
support the ‘hardest to help' move back into, or towards, work by providing joined up 
services, centred around the individual. 

  
59. The scheme was aimed at individuals aged 30 years and over and those either in : 

 

Case studies- Kelly, James and Nimra – Participants of Choosing Pathways 

NB- the young people attended the meeting and provided evidence of the panel. 

Kelly- " I left school at 16, I am now 21. I went college and then worked for 2 years, but I had to 

leave that job because it was very difficult, as it was not a nice place to work. I wasn’t working for 

about 6 months, then got another job for 4/5 months and then I found Choosing Pathways. YEI has 

made such a difference for me, i wrote a CV and James has really helped me. We talked about 

what i want to do and he has made me realise I can do what I want to do" 

 

James- When we first met Nimra, she was the most timid, quiet and lovely natured young woman 

we had ever met, but she was so quiet. In our first one-to-one, which lasted about an hour, Nimra 

spoke about a dozen words. We worked on different skills and Nimra went and completed the 

National Citizenship Service. Three weeks later, this little person came bouncing through the door 

full of confidence and skills to move forward with. I am very proud of Nimra and what she has 

achieved, as she is now an apprentice within Democratic Services in the Council' 

 

Nimra- "You helped me gain a lot of confidence and I am so pleased I did the programme" 

 

Anthony- " I was working in merchandising before Christmas, but I was laid off and I got in a bad 

way. The programme boosted my confidence as I lacked motivation, but I am now waiting for a 

start date for a job" 

Page 22



15 

 

 over 2 years unemployed, or  
 who had significant/multiple barriers who are unlikely to find work in the next 12 months, 

e.g. ex-offenders; disability; BME/ESOL needed; SEND; drug/alcohol dependencies, or  
 who have had a claim for Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) rejected, or  
 were on the ESA Support Group (have a significant health issue but may be able to work 

with assistance), or  
 were not in work but are disengaged from the benefit system. 

60. The panel learnt that the key elements of the scheme were to support the 'hardest to help' to 
move back into, or towards, work by providing joined up services, centred around the 
individual by doing the following: 
  

 Creation of multi-agency teams;  
 Use of Key Workers' who can provide holistic support around the individual on the Pilot 

and into work;  
 Targeted use of advocacy/ brokerage with employers;  
 Ongoing in-work support (for the individual/employer) for up to 12 months.  

61. The Pilot should also: 

  be fully integrated with other existing services offered by a range of partners;  
  cross refer to other programmes and aim to fill any gaps in existing provision, using  

flexible funding.  

62. The project from the outset seemed very worthwhile, due to the increased unemployment 
over recent years. The panel were advised of the objectives of the scheme, these being: 

  

 To use the progressive approach to help those furthest from the labour market move more 
closely towards work  

 Engage with long -term unemployed , breaking down barriers and looking at holistic needs  
 Identify gaps in provision already out there  
 To increase skills and improve health and wellbeing  
 Support those furthest removed from the labour market  

Targets 

63. Targets for the project were set by the Tees Valley Combined Authority, who had set a 
target to get 273 people engaged on the Routes to work scheme, actual numbers were 108 
(November 2018). This target was for year two (April 2018-March 2019). The panel were 
made aware that there was a high demand for participants on the scheme, however at the 
time evidence was received, there were staffing issues were preventing the scheme taking 
on more participants. Despite this, at the time, 4.5 staff had recently been recruited and 
officers were confident that once in post the target would be met. 
 

64. 'Making a positive outcome', TVCA has set a target of 247. The panel were made aware that 
this could be seen as going on a training course, referring an individual to housing or debt 
advice, or establishing a CV. 

 
65. ‘Getting individuals into work’, TVCA year 2 target was set at 13, and the scheme in 

November 2018 had directed 9 into the work place. This demonstrated the significant work 

Page 23



16 

 

undertook by staff. It was essential to recruit the right people as key workers, who were able 
to understand the needs of an individual. 
 

Referrals  
 

66. Referrals to the scheme come from a whole host of partners, including; self-referral, Job 
Centre Plus, job coaches, local authority and any service or voluntary service (MVDA/ 
MIND). 

 
67. Due to the background of the participants, the panel questioned how businesses responded, 

and approached a participant, who, for example, was an ex-offender.  It was explained that 
it was down to the business and some were willing to provide opportunities, for example, 
businesses in Yarm. The scheme was also unique in that it can provide funding to help 
businesses pay half their wages for a couple of weeks, or buy the individual bus fares/ new 
clothes in order for them to carry out work. 

 
68. Referral of ex-service personnel was also discussed due to Middlesbrough’s commitment 

through the Armed Forces Community Covenant. Whilst there had currently been no 
referrals to the project, the officers outlined that contact would be made with the transition 
service in the future. 

 

69. The panel were also provided with the ‘Learners Journey’ which detailed a learner’s journey 
through the scheme.  

 
Step 1: Learners assigned a key worker  
 
Step 2: individual plan is developed- this will address and identify skills learners have, 
training requirements and identify what sort of support/job they require. The key worker 
will also spend time discussing the barriers with the individual which has preventing them 
getting into work, this could be a whole host of things, including substance misuse, ex 
offender and parental/ carer issues. Individuals have regular contact with their key worker, 
where advice is provided. If the individual were assigned to a course, the key worker will 
make contact during the course to monitor progress. 
 
Step 3: Once the key worker feels the individual is work ready, we will offer them the right 
support, for example, providing them with the correct IT skills to apply for jobs online, 
setting up an email address, help with job applications, developing a CV and giving advice 
on interview techniques. Once in work, the scheme offers incentives for employees to help 
support individuals in work. 
 
Quite often volunteering opened up opportunities for work and this was seen as an ideal 
route for those who had been out of work for a long time. 
  

70.  The panel finally were interested in the intended outcomes and impacts of Routes to work.  
 

71.  Intended outcomes were as follows: 
  

 Improved confidence, independence, aspirations and motivation  
 Client more socially included  
 New opportunities  

Page 24



17 

 

 Volunteering  
 Work experience  
 No. of clients in paid work  
 Increased income/financial security  

72. Intended impacts: 

 Improved mental and physical health  

 Less Isolation 

 Less reliance  

 Less reliance on benefits 

 Reduction in crime 

 Community cohesion 

 new industry- meeting new employers  

 Increased productively of the Town 

 Increased productivity of the town  
 Clients leading more fulfilled lives  

73. The panel were impressed by what the programme offered, especially as the course was in 
its early stages of development. They further commended the commitment of the staff and 
the aim of the programme and looked forward to seeing further developments as the 
scheme progressed. 
 

 
 

Case studies 

Trainers: "Officers were approached by a man who was really down and really depressed, he had 

been on drugs, binge drinking and hadn’t worked for years. He referred himself to the project. They 

don’t have to come, they are not forced. He didn’t turn up to the next appointment so I gave him a 

call and sent him an email. Then he got in touch and he came back. A few weeks later he was binge 

drinking again. Then got back in touch. After completing a report with him, I started saying even if 

you don’t want to come, still come. You don’t have to get dressed in your best clothes. So he started 

coming all the time. I referred him to MIND and I went along with him. They absolutely loved him. He 

has gone on to one of their programmes. If he does another one he can go to a Team Leader and 

he can volunteer with them. Massive difference in him. He said I love running and my bicycle got 

stolen. He had a face full of spots as well and his confidence was low. I assured him it was just me 

and to keep calm.  We got him an appointment for the Doctors. He got his spots sorted. We had the 

luxury of buying him some trainers. Now goes running 3 times a week. On a bike maintenance 

course. At the end of the second day he gets the bike to keep. He hasn’t lapsed now for about 5 

months. He is really positive and looking forward to life". 

Teeth: We had a guy who came to us who had very low confidence. Smoked and drank heavily. He 
had been out of work for 5 years.  We noticed that h only had about had 4 teeth but he complained 
that he used to suffer with pains in his stomach. We got him a doctors’ appointment and found out 
he had acid reflux. The doctor prescribed tablets and his stomach is now fine.  Then I said about a 
dentist and he began to cry. He was terrified of going, so I look him along. After a series of 
appointments, he now has a full set of teeth and is loads more confidence. He would now look for a 
volunteer role and eventually look for work. 

 

 

 

Page 25



18 

 

 
CONCLUSIONS 
 

74. From the evidence provided, the panel applauds the excellent work undertaken by the 
officers within Middlesbrough Community Learning. It is clear that the programmes offered 
strive to achieve the outcomes set by Tees Valley Combined Authority, by offering courses 
and projects which equip learners to be ‘work ready’. 
 

75. Adult Education Budget courses (Community Learning and skills) are well attended and for 
some learners provide the basic English and engagement the need to feel welcome and 
included in their local community. Community learning and especially opportunities offered 
by local businesses are extremely popular due to their tailor made courses for learners, 
flexibility and for some are a lifeline in tackling mental health issues. The team would like a 
special mention to Lisa Fallows, Managing Director of Savvy Health, Hair and Beauty salon, 
who works tirelessly to offer opportunities to the local community, the panel were moved by 
Natalie’s story and the support and commitment she has received by Lisa. 

 

76. The Youth Employment Initiative - Choosing Pathways is an excellent scheme and provides 
youth people the opportunities and vital skills they require to enter the work environment. 
Middlesbrough Council has employed a number of the participants from the Initiatives onto 
their Apprenticeship scheme and have been impressed with the calibre of applicants. 
Communication with partners is excellent, however there is sometimes a need for a direct 
contact when referring learners to courses to Middlesbrough College.  

 

77. The panel commended the Routes to Work scheme, commenting on its excellent objectives 
and particular focus on reaching out to those who have found it difficult to gain employment. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

78.  The Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel recommends to the Executive: 
 
 

 That the Panel receive an update on the progress made within Adult Skills and Community 
Leaning in 6 months’ time. The Panel would be keen to learn more good practice in 
Middlesbrough in relation to partnership working/ positive outcomes. 

 In terms of the Youth Employment Initiative, the panel is keen to develop closer working 
relationship with Middlesbrough College, with this in mind, the panel recommend that YEI 
be provided with one single point of contact within the STEM centre for learner referrals to 
courses.  

 That the Routes to Work project be added to Middlesbrough Council’s Armed Forces 
Directory and information on the project be passed to the transition service. 

 That the panel receive a further update on the Routes to Work project in 6 months’ time, 
with regard to the number of participants since staff recruitment and success stories. 

 
 
 

Page 26



19 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
28.  The Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel would like to thank the following for their 

assistance with its work: 
 

- Adam Allen, Director of Culture, Communities and Communications  
- Chris Kemp, Community Learning Manager 
- Karen MacKintosh, Manager of Adult Skills 
- Terry Frank, Coordinator of the Youth Employment Initiative (YEI) 
- Joanne Richards, Coordinator of the Routes to Work scheme and Community learning  
- Barbara Smith, Routes to Work 
- James Jamison–Mentor of YEI 
- YEI participants 
- Lisa Fallows- Managing Director of SAVVY Hair and Beauty 
- Natalie- Learner and Volunteer of SAVVY Hair and Beauty 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
   
29. The following sources were consulted or referred to in preparing this report: 

 
- Minutes of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel meetings held on 10 

September 2018, 15 October 2018 and 19 November 2018. 
- Tees Valley Combined Authority website 
- Department of Business, Innovation and Skills- New Challenges, New Chances: Next 

Steps in Implementing the Further Education Reform Programme 
- Middlesbrough College Website 

 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS MCINTYRE 
-CHAIR OF CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
The membership of the scrutiny panel is as follows: Councillors C McIntyre (Chair), D Smith (Vice 
Chair), L Lewis, J Goodchild, R Arundale, L Garvey, J Rostron and J Thompson. 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
Susie Blood 
Democratic Services 
Telephone: 01642 729645 (direct line) 
Email: Susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk  

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel - 21 October 2021
	4 Middlesbrough Community Learning Employability- update

